
 
          Sinclair Water Authority 

126 Cay Drive Milledgeville, GA 31061 

Phone (706) 485-8993   Fax (706) 485-8994 

 

Agenda 

Monday, November 8, 2021 ◊ 5:00 PM 

Sinclair Water Plant 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

2. Public Participation 

 

Minutes 
3. Approval of Minutes 

a. September 13, 2021 Regular Meeting 

b. October 19, 2021 Called Meeting 

 

Reports I 
4. Manager's Report 

 

New Business 
5. Approval of 2022 Meeting Calendar 

6. Discussion of Plant Manager Departure 

7. Discussion and possible action on Management Proposals 

a. ESG Inc. 

b. Southern Water Group 

8. Discussion and possible action on CFO transition 

 

Executive Session 
9. Enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Personnel, Litigation, or Real 

Estate 

10. Reopen meeting and execute Affidavit concerning the subject matter of the closed portion of 

the meeting 

11. Action, if any, resulting from the Executive Session 

 

Reports II 
12. Plant Production Reports 

13. Financial Reports 

 

Closing 
14. Next Meeting - January 10, 2022 

15. Adjournment 

Sinclair Water 

1



File Attachments for Item:

3. Approval of Minutes

a. September 13, 2021 Regular Meeting

b. October 19, 2021 Called Meeting

2



 

DRAFT Minutes Page 1 of 4  

September 13, 2021   

 

SWA 

Sinclair Water Authority 
126 Cay Drive Milledgeville, GA 31061 

Andrew Paracca Plant Manager 

Phone (706) 485-8993   Fax (706) 485-8994 
 

Minutes 

Monday, September 13, 2021 ◊ 5:00 PM 

Sinclair Water Plant 

 

The Sinclair Water Authority met on Monday, September 13, 2021 at approximately 5:00 PM at 

the Sinclair Water Plant, 126 Cay Drive, Milledgeville, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Robert Brown 

Member Sammy Hall 

Member Tommy Jefferson 

Member David Waddell 

Member Billy Webster 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

Plant Manager Andrew Paracca 

Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

Chairman Brown called the meeting to order at approximately 4:55 p.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes.) 

 

2. Public Participation 

None 

 

Minutes 
3. Approval of Minutes - July 12, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Motion to approve the July 12, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes.  

Motion made by Member Webster, Seconded by Member Hall. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Waddell, 

Member Webster 
 

 

 

 

3



 

DRAFT Minutes Page 2 of 4  

September 13, 2021   

 

 

Reports I 
4. Manager's Report 

Plant Manager Paracca took the board on a quick tour of the water plant to point out some of the 

maintenance issues, such as: ceiling paint, oxidant ceiling vents, gutters, chemical containments 

and the CIP room. 

Plant Manager Paracca reported the following: 

 Membrane performance remains stable 

 Sludge removal process plan till end of year 

 Update on NPDES permit and testing procedures 

 Job hierarchy and pay scale changes 

 Update on cyber security 

 Maintenance program 

 GovDeals 

 Credit card limit 

Chairman Brown noted that the credit card bills should be reconciled by people not using the 

card.   

Motion to expand the credit card limit to $7500. 

Motion made by Member Hall, Seconded by Member Jefferson. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Waddell, 

Member Webster 

 SCI-62 algaecide 

 Power extension to external buildings 

 CFO position 

 Depreciation 

(Copy of report made a part of the minutes.) 

 

New Business 
5. FY20 Audit Report 

The FY20 audit report was emailed to members before the meeting.  No action was taken. 

(Copy of report made a part of the minutes.) 

 

6. Depreciation Discussion 

Discussed during the Manager's Report. 

 

7. Discussion on Long Term Repairs and Upgrades 

Plant Manager Paracca reviewed the list of long term repairs and upgrades and advised that the 

list is as he sees as necessary over the next five years. 

Motion to authorize the purchase a trail wagon up to $8000 with final approval by 

Chairman Brown and Member Webster. 

Motion made by Member Waddell, Seconded by Member Jefferson. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Waddell, 

Member Webster 

(Copy of list made a part of the minutes.) 

 

 

4



 

DRAFT Minutes Page 3 of 4  

September 13, 2021   

 

8. Approval of Quote for Clearwell and Intake Screen Inspection/Cleaning 

Plant Manager Paracca reviewed quotes from SE Diving Services to clean the tank for $4850 and 

to inspect the intake and screens and clean them for $4800. 

Motion to approve the quotes from SE Diving Services. 

Motion made by Member Jefferson, Seconded by Member Webster. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Waddell, 

Member Webster 

(Copy of quotes made a part of the minutes.) 

 

9. Approval of FY22 Proposed Budget 

Motion to approve the FY22 Budget as presented. 

Motion made by Member Jefferson, Seconded by Member Webster. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Waddell, 

Member Webster 

(Copy of budget made a part of the minutes.) 

 

Old Business 
10. Approval of Proposal from Carter & Sloope for Sludge Management 

Chairman Brown reminded the board that they did an email approval for Carter & Sloope to do 

preliminary engineering for sludge management at a cost of $8400.   

Motion to ratify the approval for Carter & Sloope to do preliminary engineering for sludge 

management at a cost of $8400. 

Motion made by Member Jefferson, Seconded by Member Webster. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Waddell, 

Member Webster 

(Copy of proposal made a part of the minutes.) 

 

11. Approval of Clean in Place Chemical Room Upgrades from $5000 to $7500 

Motion to approve an additional $2000 for Clean in Place Chemical Room upgrades. 

Motion made by Member Jefferson, Seconded by Member Waddell. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Waddell, 

Member Webster 
 

Reports II 
12. Plant Production Reports 

Plant Production reports are in the meeting package to review.  No action was taken. 

 

13. Financial Reports 

Financial reports are in the meeting package to review.  Member Jefferson recommended that the 

auditor's comments be taken seriously and requested that the monthly financials show the net 

before and after depreciation.  No action was taken. 

 

Closing 
14. Next Meeting - November 8, 2021 

The next meeting is scheduled for November 8, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

5



 

DRAFT Minutes Page 4 of 4  

September 13, 2021   

 

15. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Member Jefferson, Seconded by Member Webster. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Waddell, 

Member Webster 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 6:40 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Robert Brown 

Clerk        Chairman 

 

6



DRAFT Called Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 3  

October 19, 2021   

 

SWA 

Sinclair Water Authority 
126 Cay Drive Milledgeville, GA 31061 

Andrew Paracca Plant Manager 

Phone (706) 485-8993   Fax (706) 485-8994 
 

Called Meeting 

Minutes 

Tuesday, October 19, 2021 ◊ 4:00 PM 

Sinclair Water Plant 

 

The Sinclair Water Authority met on Tuesday, October 19, 2021 at approximately 4:00 PM at 

the Sinclair Water Plant, 126 Cay Drive, Milledgeville, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Robert Brown 

Member Sammy Hall 

Member Tommy Jefferson 

Member David Waddell 

Member Billy Webster 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

Plant Manager Andrew Paracca 

Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

Chairman Brown called the meeting to order at approximately 3:56 p.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes.) 

 

Called Meeting 
2. Discussion and possible action on ARPA Grant 

Member Webster advised that the Eatonton-Putnam Water & Sewer Authority applied for a $6M 

ARPA grant to do infrastructure and sewer improvements mostly in the City of Eatonton.  Their 

application, prepared by ESG, included a 50% match, as It has been established that the more 

match money you put up the better your chances to get the grant.  The $3M match is made up by 

$2M from EPWSA and $1M between the City of Eatonton and Putnam County.  He also advised 

that Putnam County has done several letters of support and committed over $40M in grant 

dollars via letters or money. 

 

Plant Manager Paracca advised that Carter & Sloope has been working on the ARPA grant 

application at a fee of $1000-$1500 and he recommended staying with them verses letting ESG 

write it. 

7



DRAFT Called Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 3  

October 19, 2021   

 

Plant Manager Paracca reviewed the proposed projects that would be funded with the grant 

money: 

Long Term Repairs and Upgrades 

 Basket Strainer vulnerability ~$500,000.00  

o Add redundant valves and strainers for Sedimentation Effluent basket strainers  

 Scada Upgrades ~$50,000.00 

o New upgradable computers with updated operating system and Scada software 

o Backup communication failsafe set-up for Raw water, Putnam tank, and Baldwin 

tank comms 

o Additional Cybersecurity features added in 

 Chemical Pump redundancy (~$19,500.00) 

o Spare Fluoride pump $1,851.00 

o Spare Phosphate pump $978.00 

o Chlorine Dioxide  

 Pumps – $1,569.00 

 CLO2 reactor replacement –$9008.24 

 Eductor - $1610.00 

o Carbon Pump Repairs – no estimate (possibly a $6000.00 - $10,000.00 explosion 

proof motor) 

The total grant application would be for $600K and would include a 50% match.  Member 

Webster advised that the grant application would look even better if both Putnam and Baldwin 

would contribute to the matching funds. 

 

Member Waddell asked if Baldwin and Putnam could each contribute $50K and SWA handle the 

other $200K.  Members Webster and Hall advised that both boards of commissioners would 

have to decide that at a meeting. 

 

Motion to proceed with the ARPA grant application for $600K with a 50% match from 

SWA. 

Motion amended to not exceed $200K from SWA. 

Motion made by Member Webster, Seconded by Member Jefferson. 

Amended motion made by Member Webster, Seconded by Member Jefferson. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Waddell, 

Member Webster 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Closing 

8



DRAFT Called Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 3  

October 19, 2021   

 

3. Adjournment 

Plant Manager Paracca advised that he is leaving SWA as of November 15, 2021; he received 

another job for more money and will be able to work from home. 

 

Member Webster threw out the idea of ESG running SWA, advising that they have been doing a 

good job at EPWSA. Chairman Brown agreed that it wouldn't hurt to listen to a proposal from 

them.  Member Jefferson advised that they manage a plant identical to SWA, only 

larger.  Member Waddell agreed that it would be good to explore, even if on a temporary basis. 

 

Plant Manager Paracca will reach out to ESG to get a proposal before the next meeting.   

 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Member Hall, Seconded by Member Jefferson. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Waddell, 

Member Webster 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 4:23 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Robert Brown 

Clerk        Chairman 

 

9



File Attachments for Item:

4. Manager's Report

10



11



12



13



File Attachments for Item:

5. Approval of 2022 Meeting Calendar

14



15



File Attachments for Item:

7. Discussion and possible action on Management Proposals

a. ESG Inc.

b. Southern Water Group

16



17



18



19



20



21



File Attachments for Item:

12. Plant Production Reports

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



File Attachments for Item:

13. Financial Reports

38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



Sinclair Water Authority

Profit & Loss Budget Performance
Accrual Basis

Jan - Oct 21 Budget % of Budget Annual Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

34.4200 · Water sales

34.4210 · Water sales - Baldwin 954,814.10 954,814.10 100.0% 1,145,777.00

34.4220 · Water sales - Putnam 781,211.60 781,211.60 100.0% 937,454.00

Total 34.4200 · Water sales 1,736,025.70 1,736,025.70 100.0% 2,083,231.00

36.1000 · Interest Earned 7,342.58 5,416.68 135.56% 6,500.00

38.9000 · Other Income

38.9100 · Reserve Income 67,761.00 67,761.00 100.0% 67,761.00

Total 38.9000 · Other Income 67,761.00 67,761.00 100.0% 67,761.00

39 · Other

39.2100 · Suplus Sales 750.00

Total 39 · Other 750.00

Total Income 1,811,879.28 1,809,203.38 100.15% 2,157,492.00

Gross Profit 1,811,879.28 1,809,203.38 100.15% 2,157,492.00

Expense

51 · Pers Serv & Benefits

51.1000 · Salaries and wages

51.1100 · Salaries & Wages-Regular 283,714.68 297,758.34 95.28% 357,310.00

51.1400 · Salaries & Wages - Other 14,012.70 13,129.18 106.73% 15,755.00

Total 51.1000 · Salaries and wages 297,727.38 310,887.52 95.77% 373,065.00

51.2000 · Employee Benefits

51.2100 · Group Health Insurance 49,211.29 45,529.18 108.09% 54,635.00

51.2120 · BCBS-Dental 2,421.20 2,508.34 96.53% 3,010.00

51.2130 · BCBS-Vision 361.91 348.34 103.9% 418.00

51.2200 · Social Security (FICA) 17,318.70 18,715.84 92.54% 22,459.00

51.2300 · Medicare 4,053.62 4,508.34 89.91% 5,410.00

51.2400 · Retirement  Plan Base Contr 5,787.50 6,217.50 93.08% 7,461.00

51.2450 · Retirement Plan Match 8,636.76 9,326.68 92.6% 11,192.00

51.2460 · Pension Plan 5,798.00 5,608.34 103.38% 6,730.00

51.2700 · Workers' Compensation -2,508.00 16,666.68 -15.05% 20,000.00

51.2900 · Group Life Insurance 1,039.12 1,215.00 85.52% 1,458.00

 Page 1 of 3

46



Jan - Oct 21 Budget % of Budget Annual Budget

Total 51.2000 · Employee Benefits 92,120.10 110,644.24 83.26% 132,773.00

Total 51 · Pers Serv & Benefits 389,847.48 421,531.76 92.48% 505,838.00

52 · Services

52.1000 · Professional & technical

52.1200 · Professional services

52.1210 · Legal Fees 528.00 916.68 57.6% 1,100.00

52.1220 · Accounting Services 28,650.03 19,541.70 146.61% 23,450.00

Total 52.1200 · Professional services 29,178.03 20,458.38 142.62% 24,550.00

52.1300 · Technical services

52.1310 · Engineering 6,935.00 6,250.00 110.96% 7,500.00

52.1320 · Computer Services 1,477.93 916.68 161.23% 1,100.00

52.1330 · Laboratory Testing 19,641.83 22,083.34 88.94% 26,500.00

52.1340 · Payroll Processing 2,165.58 2,166.68 99.95% 2,600.00

Total 52.1300 · Technical services 30,220.34 31,416.70 96.19% 37,700.00

Total 52.1000 · Professional & technical 59,398.37 51,875.08 114.5% 62,250.00

52.2000 · Property services

52.2150 · Alum Sludge Disposal 25,446.86 37,500.00 67.86% 45,000.00

52.2210 · Building Maintenance 18,187.47 15,833.34 114.87% 19,000.00

52.2220 · Equipment Maintenance 61,137.33 43,333.34 141.09% 52,000.00

52.2230 · Automobile Expense 605.08 833.34 72.61% 1,000.00

52.2700 · Membrane Maintenance Services 16,065.00 0.0% 19,278.00

Total 52.2000 · Property services 105,376.74 113,565.02 92.79% 136,278.00

52.3000 · Other services

52.3100 · Insurance Expense 27,621.00 22,916.68 120.53% 27,500.00

52.3200 · Telephone (communications) 3,240.04 3,333.34 97.2% 4,000.00

52.3300 · Advertising 0.00 625.00 0.0% 750.00

52.3500 · Travel Expense 1,009.75 3,333.34 30.29% 4,000.00

52.3600 · Dues and fees 924.88 833.34 110.99% 1,000.00

52.3700 · Education Training 2,004.00 3,250.00 61.66% 3,900.00

52.3800 · License Renewals 480.00 666.68 72.0% 800.00

52.3850 · Contract Labor 2,475.00 5,833.34 42.43% 7,000.00

Total 52.3000 · Other services 37,754.67 40,791.72 92.56% 48,950.00

Total 52 · Services 202,529.78 206,231.82 98.21% 247,478.00

53 · Supplies

53.1100 · Office Supplies 4,291.37 4,166.68 102.99% 5,000.00

53.1135 · Chemicals 180,516.64 201,000.00 89.81% 241,200.00

 Page 2 of 3

47



Jan - Oct 21 Budget % of Budget Annual Budget

53.1140 · Laboratory Supplies 21,739.09 17,500.00 124.22% 21,000.00

53.1150 · Safety Items 1,805.03 1,666.68 108.3% 2,000.00

53.1200 · Utilities / Energy 131,953.29 137,500.00 95.97% 165,000.00

53.1220 · Raw Water Withdrawal 41,855.57 44,166.68 94.77% 53,000.00

53.1270 · Gasoline 1,224.34 1,666.68 73.46% 2,000.00

53.1600 · Small equipment & tools 0.00 833.34 0.0% 1,000.00

53.1710 · Uniforms 488.05 1,020.84 47.81% 1,225.00

Total 53 · Supplies 383,873.38 409,520.90 93.74% 491,425.00

66700 · Professional Fees 0.00

Total Expense 976,250.64 1,037,284.48 94.12% 1,244,741.00

Net Ordinary Income 835,628.64 771,918.90 108.25% 912,751.00

Other Income/Expense

Other Expense

56 · Depreciation & amortization

56.1500 · Membrane Replacement Contract 101,250.00 0.0% 121,500.00

Total 56 · Depreciation & amortization 0.00 101,250.00 0.0% 121,500.00

57.9000 · Contingencies 0.00 23,333.32 0.0% 28,000.00

58 · Debt service

58.1330 · GEFA Loan #1 Principal 5,746.01 5,333.34 107.74% 6,400.00

58.1340 · GEFA  Loan #2 Principal 40,999.86 37,750.00 108.61% 45,300.00

58.1350 · Series 2019 Principal 220,000.00 187,500.00 117.33% 225,000.00

58.2310 · GEFA Loan #1 Interest Expense 1,693.84 1,666.68 101.63% 2,000.00

58.2320 · GEFA Loan #2 Interest Expense 16,682.44 16,250.00 102.66% 19,500.00

58.2350 · Series 2019 Interest 466,200.00 385,750.00 120.86% 462,900.00

58.3000 · Fiscal Agent Fees 2,150.00 2,150.00 100.0% 2,150.00

Total 58 · Debt service 753,472.15 636,400.02 118.4% 763,250.00

Total Other Expense 753,472.15 760,983.34 99.01% 912,750.00

Net Other Income -753,472.15 -760,983.34 99.01% -912,750.00

Net Income 82,156.49 10,935.56 751.28% 1.00

 Page 3 of 3

48



49



50


	Top
	Item #3.	2021-11-08 SWA Minutes
	DRAFT 09-13-21 SWA Minutes
	DRAFT 10-19-21 SWA Called Meeting Minutes

	Item #4.	2021-11-08 SWA Manager Report
	Manager&#39;s Report 110821

	Item #5.	2021-11-08 SWA 2022 Meeting Schedule
	2022 Meeting Calendar

	Item #7.	2021-11-08 SWA Mgmt Proposals
	Southern Water Group Proposal

	Item #12.	2021-11-08 SWA Plant Reports
	Plant Production Report 110821

	Item #13.	2021-11-08 SWA Financials
	Financial Reports 110821 revised

	Bottom

